
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
TUESDAY, 21 MAY 2024 AT 10.00 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 16 April 2024  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven - Disposal of Freehold  (Pages 7 - 12) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 13 May 2024 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Interim Senior Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 16 April 2024 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

 

64. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 28 MARCH 2024  

 

64.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
March 2024. 

 

65. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

65.1 There were none. 

 

66. URGENT ITEMS  

 

66.1 There were none. 

 

67. REPORTS  

 

67.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

68. JOINT USE AGREEMENT RELATING TO BATTLE AREA SPORTS CENTRE, BATTLE  

 

68.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer together with 
exempt information contained in a later agenda item. 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

DECISIONS 
 
68.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Approve the Council entering into a Joint Use Agreement with Rother District Council to 
facilitate ongoing curriculum and community use of the Sports Centre facilities at Battle Area 
Sports Centre for a 4-year period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2028; and 
 
2) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the Joint Use 
Agreement and to carry out all actions necessary to give effect to the recommendations in the 
report. 
 
REASONS 
 
68.3 The ongoing community use of the sports centre is of benefit to the residents of the local 
and wider area. The parties have agreed in principle to enter into a new Joint Use Agreement 
on substantially the same terms as the previous agreement, albeit the length of the new 
agreement shall be four years. 

 

69. JOINT USE AGREEMENT RELATING TO LEWES ATHLETIC TRACK, LEWES  

 

69.1 The Lead Member consider a report by the Chief Operating Officer together with exempt 
information contained in a later agenda item. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
69.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Approve the Council entering into a 10-year Joint Use Agreement with Lewes District Council, 
Wave Active Trust, Priory School and Lewes Athletic Club to facilitate ongoing curriculum and 
community use of the Lewes Athletic Track facilities; and 
 
2) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the Joint Use 
Agreement and to take all actions necessary to give effect to the recommendations in the report. 
 
REASONS 
 
69.3 The ongoing community use of Lewes Athletic Track will continue to benefit users of the 
Track and residents of East Sussex. The Joint Use Agreement will be based on similar costs to 
the partners’ existing contributions. 

 

70. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

70.1 It was RESOLVED to exclude the public and press for the remaining agenda items on 
the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

71. JOINT USE AGREEMENT RELATING TO BATTLE AREA SPORTS CENTRE, BATTLE 
- EXEMPT INFORMATION  

 

71.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer which provided 
exempt information in support of an earlier item on the agenda. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
71.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to note the exempt information in relation to an earlier 
item on the agenda. 
 
REASONS 
 
71.3 The report contained exempt information in relation to an earlier item on the agenda. 

 

72. JOINT USE AGREEMENT RELATING TO LEWES ATHLETIC TRACK, LEWES - 
EXEMPT INFORMATION  

 

72.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer which provided 
exempt information in support of an earlier item on the agenda. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
72.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to note the exempt information in relation to an earlier 
item on the agenda. 
 
REASONS 
 
72.3 The report contained exempt information in relation to an earlier item on the agenda. 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report to:  Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

  

Date of meeting:  

  

21 May 2024  

By:  Chief Operating Officer   

  

Title:  117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven – Disposal of Freehold 

  

Purpose:  To declare the property surplus to the Council’s requirements and to 

agree to dispose of the asset in accordance with s123 of the Local 

Government Act 1972  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:  

1) Declare 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven, as shown on the Plan in Appendix 
1, surplus to the Council’s requirements; 

2) Approve the disposal of 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven to Lewes District 
Council; 

3) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale 
to achieve the best consideration reasonably obtainable for the Site in 
accordance with s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972; and  

4) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary 
to give effect to the recommendations in this report. 

 

1  Background  

1.1 The County Council owns a two-storey terrace house off South Coast Road in 
Peacehaven.  This asset is not used for any County Council operational use. 
 

1.2 The Property comprises open plan lounge/dining area and separate kitchen on the 
ground floor, with family bathroom, two double bedrooms and a small box room on 
the first floor. It is in a reasonable decorative order internally. Externally, the rear 
elevation requires significant repointing works and is generally considered to require 
maintenance and repair works. There is a separate garage that is accessed via 
Piddinghoe Avenue to the rear of the property.  

 
1.3 The extent of the property is shown in Appendix 1 (“the Property”). The house, 

including front and rear gardens are shown edged in red. The garage to the rear is 
shown shaded green, with an area of hardstanding to the front of the garage shown 
shaded blue. Rights of way over the hardstanding are shown shaded brown, for which 
all garage owners share maintenance obligations.  

 
1.4      The Council acquired the freehold of the Property in 1970 and there has been a 

licence agreement in place with Lewes District Council (“LDC”) since 1977. LDC use 
the property for social housing purposes. Lewes District Council are responsible for 
works that are, or may become, necessary in order to keep the property in a sound 
and tenantable condition and which are considered financially viable. In return, the 
County Council receive an annual net income of on average £3,900 per year from 
Lewes District Council. 
 

2  Supporting information  

 
 2.1  As part of the Council’s Asset Management Plan 2020-2025, officers are reviewing all 

non-operational assets, including the Property.  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2.2 The licence granted by the Council to LDC in respect of the Property can be 
terminated upon six months’ written notice. However, LDC have granted a secure 
tenancy in respect of the Property and it is currently occupied by a residential tenant. 
In practice, therefore, vacant possession is only likely to be possible in the event the 
secure tenancy is brought to an end, either by the residential tenant or LDC. It is, 
therefore, not considered viable to dispose of this Property on the open market, at this 
time due to the nature of the residents’ tenancy arrangements.  

 

2.3  The options available in respect of this Property, which is a non-operational asset, are 
as follows: 

 

 Option 1 – The Council could make a request to LDC that the social housing 
tenant is relocated to another property and then terminate the licence 
agreement with LDC. Alternatively, if LDC refuse to do so, it would be 
necessary to wait until the residential tenant vacates the Property and then 
terminate the licence with LDC accordingly. In either scenario, this would 
enable the Council to gain vacant possession and sell the Property on the 
open market.   

 

 Option 2 – Terminate the licence with LDC after gaining vacant possession (as 
above) and then use the Property for a County Council service. 

 

 Option 3 – Seek to negotiate a lease between the Council and LDC in respect 
of the Property, giving them the ability to sub-let to a social housing tenant.   

 

 Option 4 – Agree a sale of the freehold to LDC based on an independent Red 
Book valuation, making the special assumption that vacant possession has 
been gained at the valuation date.  A ‘special assumption’ is defined in the 
Red Book as ‘those things which are not true but have been assumed to be 
true e.g. vacant possession when the property is in fact occupied, or that 
planning consent has been obtained, or that building works are completed.  

 
2.4 There are advantages and disadvantages to each of the four options above, and 

these are considered below: 
 

 Option 1 (Gain Vacant Possession and sell the Property on the open market): 
There is a secure social tenancy in place, meaning that it could take months or 
years to gain vacant possession, by which time the Property will have 
continued to deteriorate. This is therefore not considered to be a viable or 
appropriate option.  

 

 Option 2 (Use the Property for a County Council service after gaining vacant 
possession): As with Option 1, the Council has little control over timescales for 
vacant possession and the Property is in need of investment and 
maintenance. If and when vacant possession is gained, the County Council 
would then need to invest in improving and repairing the property. This is 
therefore not considered to be a viable or appropriate option. 

 

 Option 3 (Agree a lease with LDC to replace the existing Licence): Granting 
LDC a lease with a long term (i.e. 25 years or more) may enable LDC to invest 
in the property. However, the rental income received by the County Council is 
likely to still be negligible.  

 

 Option 4 (Agree a sale of the freehold to LDC): This will give the County 
Council a capital receipt and will enable LDC to undertake necessary 
improvement works to the property, while maintaining the secure social 
housing tenancy.  

 

Page 8



2.5 Following discussions with LDC, it is proposed, subject to Lead Member approval, to 
pursue Option 4.  

 
2.6 If this option is approved, a joint valuation will be commissioned under the Royal 

Institution of Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”), in accordance with the ‘Red Book’. This 
will satisfy the requirement under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
ensure that the property is not disposed of for less than the best consideration that 
can reasonably be obtained. The valuation will provide an opinion of the Market Value 
of the property at the valuation date, on the special assumption that the property is 
available to sell with vacant possession on the open market. The reported value is to 
be the price at which the property will be sold to LDC.  

 
2.7 The disposal of the Property will result in a capital receipt. Capital receipts are an 

important source of funding, and the Council seeks to maximise the levels of these 
resources which will be available to support the Council’s capital plans and reduce the 
need to borrow in accordance with the Council’s Capital Strategy. 

 
2.8 The Local Member for Peacehaven has been informed about the sale of the Property 

to LDC and they had no objection to the proposal.  
 
2.9 All directorates within the Council have been notified of the intention to dispose of the 

Property. It was noted that the Council has little control over when vacant possession 
can be gained and that there is a secure tenancy in place.   

 
3  Conclusion and reasons for recommendations   

3.1  The County Council’s preferred route is outlined in option 4 above. This will allow a 
disposal of the Property to LDC to enable them to invest in it and maintain it for social 
housing purposes.  

 
3.2 For the reasons set out in the above report, in particular within paragraphs 2.4 and 2.7, 

the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:  
 

3.2.1  Declare 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven, as shown on the Plan in Appendix 
1, surplus to the Council’s requirements; 

3.2.2 Approve the disposal of 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven to Lewes District 
Council; 

 
3.2.3 Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale 

to achieve the best consideration reasonably obtainable for the Site in 
accordance with s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972; and  

 
3.2.4 Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary 

to give effect to the recommendations in this report. 
 
 

ROS PARKER 

Chief Operating Officer 

 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Lewis 

Email: rebecca.lewis@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS  

Councillor Chris Collier – Peacehaven 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  

None  

Page 9

mailto:rebecca.lewis@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



East Sussex
County Council
County Hall
St Annes Crescent
Lewes

Map Title: 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven

1:1,250Scale:
Date: Map No:

Author:
23/04/2024 1

DNS

Pid
din

gh
oe

Av
en

ue

ThePromenade

Su
nv

iew
 Av

en
ue

Ma
yfie

ldA
ve

nu
e

Sli
nd

on
 Av

en
ue

Sli
nd

on
 Av

en
ue

Slindon MayfieldLink Road

Gla
dy

s A
ve

nu
e

Sunview Vernon Link Road

Sli
nd

on
 Av

en
ue

Ve
rno

n A
ve

nu
e

Su
nv

iew
 Av

en
ue

Ma
yfie

ld A
ve

nu
e

Pid
din

gh
oe

 Av
en

ue

Gla
dy

s A
ve

nu
e

Gla
dy

s A
ve

nu
e

Su
nv

iew
 Av

en
ue

Pid
din

gh
oe

 Av
en

ue

Neville Road

Ma
yfie

ld A
ve

nu
e

South Coast Road

´

Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2024. © East Sussex County Council 2024.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100019601.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Cities Revealed aerial photography © The GeoInformation Group 2012
© database right Landmark Information Group Ltd. All rights reserved 2024

Page 11

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 16 April 2024
	4 117 South Coast Road, Peacehaven - Disposal of Freehold
	Appendix 1


